THE CITY OF STREETSBORO, OHIO
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

Monday, September 9, 2024

TIME: Immediately following the Special Finance Committee Meeting
PLACE: Streetsboro City Council Chambers

PRESIDENT: Steve Michniak 330-676-3056

VICE PRESIDENT: Jon Hannan 330-931-5451

1. Call to Order President of Council
2. Roll Call Clerk of Council

31 Disposition of Minutes
Public Hearing of August 12, 2024 Ag Placement Kline

Public Hearing of August 12, 2024 Chapter 1165
Regular Council Meeting of August 12, 2024

4, Citizens’ Comments
5. Reports/Communications from Depts/Boards/Commissions

6. Introduction of Legislation Containing Statement of Emergency
T-7657 Amend Ord. No. 2024-112 Modems for Cruisers
T-7658 Adopt 2024 2™ Quarter Code Updates
T-7659 Assignment of the CRA Agreement w/Geis
T-7660 Amend Pay Ordinance and Hire a Temporary Deputy Clerk

7. First Reading
None.

8. Second Reading
None.

9. Third Reading
T-7642 AdOpt New City LOgO {amend to non-emergency legislation]

10. Mayor’s Report
Re-appointments to PRCAC

11. President of Council's Comments

12. Council Members’ Comments



13.

14.

CC:

Announcements

City Hall Groundbreaking Ceremony at 6 p.m. on Tuesday, September 17, 2024.

There will be a Finance Committee and a Regular Council Meeting on Monday, September
23, 2024, starting at 7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers.

Adjournment

Newspaper



T-7657

RECORD OF ORDINANCES

GOVERNMENT FORMS & SUPPLIZS Ba4°224-3338 TV F). D003

Ordinance No. Passed , 20

AN  ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2024-112 TO
INCLUDE $487.76 IN SHIPPING COSTS FOR 11 CRADLEPOINT 3G
MODEMS AND RELATED EQUIPMENT FOR USE BY THE POLICE
DEPARTMENT IN CRUISERS. IN A NEW TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $22.980.12, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY SO TIE
EQUIPMENT CAN BE IMMEDIATELY OBTAINED.

WHEREAS. this Council previously enacted Ordinance No. 2024-112. which
authorized the Mayor to enter into a contract without competitive bidding with Access
Wireless Data Solutions for 11 Cradlepoint 3G modems and relaied equipment for use by the
Police Department in cruisers, in an amount not to exceed $22.492.36: and

WHEREAS, the amount of $487.76. the cost of shipping. was not included in the total:

NOW THEREFORLE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Strectsboro.
Portage County. Ohio. thereto concurring that:

SECTION 1: Section | of Ordinance No. 2024-112 is hereby amended as follows:

The Mayor is hereby authorized 10 enter into a contract without competitive bidding
with Access Wireless Data Solutions for 11 Cradlepoint 5G modems and related equipment
for use by the Police Department in cruisers. in an amount nol lo exceed $22=19234

$22.980.12.

SECTION 2: It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council
concerning and relating to the adoption of this ordinance were adopted in an open mecting of
this Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted
in such formal action were in meetings open 1o the public. in compliance with all legal
requirements. to the extent applicable. including Chapter 107 of the Codified Ordinances,

SECTION 3: That this Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure.
necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health. safety. convemence and welfare of
the residents of the City for the reason that it is immediately necessary to purchase the
electronic equipment so the Police Department can begin using it and provided it receives the
aftirmative vote of three-fourths of the members elected or appointed to Council. it shall take
effect and be in force immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor,

PASSED:

Date Steve Michniak, President of Council

ATTEST:

Caroline L. Kremer. Clerk of Council

APPROVED:
Date Glenn M. Broska. Mayor

Prepared and approved as 1o legal content by

David L. Nott. Law Director
Date Submitied to Mayor for Approval: Returned:

Sponsored by: I'T Department



Access Wireless Data Solutions, LLC Date Invoice #
21756 St Rd 54, Ste 101
Lutz FL 33549 8/29/2024 iNV-49312
(813) 751-2039
www.accesswds.com
Page 1 of 2
Bill To Ship To
City of Streetsboro Matt Coffman
9184 State Rd 43 City of Streetsboro
Streetsboro OH 44241 555 Frost Road
Suite 100
Streetsboro OH 44241
Terms Due Date PO # Sales Rep Ship Date
Net 30 9/28/2024 MC081324 Megan Lynch 8/29/2024
Tracking # Ship Via
122RY5554238163551
UPS® Ground
Part # Qty. Description B.O. MSRP Disc. | Price/Unit Total
MBO1-19005GB-GA 11 | Cradlepoint-R1900 5G Mobile Networking 0] 1.999.00] 22.5% | 1,549.23 17,041.53
Solution: Dual Connectivity 5G NR/Cat20
Embedded Modem, Wi-Fi 6, 4 GbE (LAN/WAN
switchablel 1 USB Port, 1 R5232 Serial Port,
Embedded Bluetzoth 6.1, Supports dual
modems w/ RX30-MC, 940 Mbgps. Firewall
throughput, 20 VPN tunnels POE capable w/
RX30-PoE. Supports CBRS/PLTE
Includes 1 year of NetCloud Mobile
Performance Essentials Package
***Does Not Include AC Power Supply or
Antennas™**
PTABAS4L2WBG15B 11 | Parsec Technologies Australian Shepherd 0 538.16 ] 20% 430.53 4,735.83
8-in-1 IP67 Low Profila High Performance
Antenna 4xLTE 2xWI-Fl 6 Bluetooth GNSS -
B00MHz to 6GHz CAT18/20 Low & Mid Band
5G- 8x LMR200 15’ Cables w/SMAM
Connectors Black Radome 0.90” Bolt Mount
No Ground Plane Req'd ** *First Responders/
Critical Communications/Transportation/Fleet
Pairs with the R1900/Fits Under Light Bars and
In Between Ford SUV Roof Ridges***
VZW G SIM 11 | Verizon Wireless 5G Triple Punch SIM Card. o 5.00 | Base 5.00 55.00
***Jse This With Low-Mid Band 5G 4FF
Applications®**
MCONFIG 11 | Modem Provisioning: Includes, 0 60.00 | Base 60.00 660.00

11Coordinate activation with Customer Carrier
Account Team

2)SIM Installation

3]Device Configuration and Programming
4)Testing: register on network, internet
accessible, passing data, remote access
5)Labeling: mobile phone number, IP address &
template {when applicable)




AANDS

Invoice

Access Wireless Data Solutions, LLC Date Invoice #

21756 St Rd 54, Ste 101

Lutz FL 33549 8/29/2024 INV-49312

(813) 751-2039

www.accesswds.com

Page 2 of 2
Part # Qty. Description B.O. MSRP Disc. | Price/Unil Total

Subtotal 22,492.36
Shipping Cost (UPS® Ground) 487.76
Total 22,980.12
Amount Due $22,980.12

*** *Plaase send all PO's and order related correspondence to orders@accesswds.com® ** *
Shipping charges not included uniess specified. All returns subject to approval and require RMA, Special Order items are not
eligible for return. Returns subject 1o a 15% re-stocking fee. Products must be in original condition with no scratches, dents
or other cosmetic damage. Must be returned in original packaging with no tears, markings or other writing, otherwise item will

not be accepted for re-stocking. No returns after 30 days.

NET TERMS DISCLOSURE: Discounts are based on Net 30 with payments by ACH or check. Payments made by credit card
for invoices with Net 30 will resuit in a reduction of your current discount level by 3%. Late payment balance due subject to

1.5% late fee not to exceed 18% per year or as allowed by law.




T-7658

RECORD OF ORDINANCES

Ordinance No. Pussed .20

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE EDITING AND INCLUSION OF
CERTAIN ORDINANCES AS PARTS OF THE VARIOUS COMPONENT
CODES OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF
STREETSBORO. AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY SO THAT THE
AMENDMLENTS ARE IN EFFECT IMMEDIATELY,

WHEREAS. various ordinances of a general and permanent nature have been passed
which should be included in the Codified Ordinances of Streetsboro. Ohio: and

WHLERLAS. numerous sections in the Traflic and General Offenses Codes need 10
be updated to reflect legislation enacted by the Ohio General Assembly; and

WHLERLAS. the City has contracted with the Walter H. Dranc Company to prepare
and publish such revisions:

NOW. THEREFORE. BE I'T ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Strectsboro.
Portage County. Ohio, three-fourths (3/4) or more of the members elected or appointed
thereto concurring:

SECTION 1: That the editing, arrangement and numbering or renumbering of the
following ordinances or parts of ordinances are hereby approved as parts of the various
component codes of the Codified Ordinances of Streetsboro. Ohio. so as 10 conform te the
classification and numbering system of the Codified Ordinances. to-wit:

Ord. No. Daie C.0. Section

2024-54 04-08-24 151.02: Repeals 149.17
2024-77 05-13-24 April 2024 Replacement Pages
2024-85 05-20-24 133.13.167.03

2024-86 05-20-24 182.01 10 182.27, 182,99
2024-92 06-10-24 1103.02. 1132.02, 1151.32

SECTION 2: That the following sections of the Traffic and General Oflenses Codes.
as amended are hereby approved and adopted as amended or enacted so as to conform to
enactments of the Ohio General Assembly:

Traftic Code
None

General Offenses Code
529.07 Open Container Prohibited. (Amended)

SECTION 3: This ordinance is adopted pursuant to the City of Streetsboro’s home
rule powers under Article XVIII. Section 3 of the Ohio Constitution and is cxpressly
intended to supersede any provisions of the Ohio Revised Code in conflict with its
provisions.

SECTION 4: That ali formal actions of Council relating to the adoption of this
ordinance. and all deliberations of Council and any of its committees leading 1o such action.
were in meetings open to the public as required by R.C. 121,22,

SECTION 5: This Ordinance is hereby declared 10 be an emergency measure
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace. health. safety and welfare of
the City of Streetsboro and its inhabitants. and for the further reason that there exists an
imperative necessity for the ecarliest publication and distribution of the July 2024
supplements 1o the Coditfied Ordinances to the officials and residents of the City. so as 10
facilitate the administration and daily operation of the City and avoid practical and legal
entanglements. Wherefore. this ordinance shall take effect and be in full force immediately



RECORD OF ORDINANCES

GOVERNMENT FORMS & SUPPLIES 544-224-3338 FORM NO. 30047

Ordinance No. Passed 20

upon its passage and approval by the Mayor. otherwise, it shall take effect and be in full
force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED:

Date Steve Michniak. President of Council
ATTEST:

Caroline L. Kremer, Clerk of Council
APPROVED:

Date (Genn M. Broska, Mayor

Prepared and approved as to legal content by:

David L. Nott, Law Director
Date Submitted to Mayor for Approval; Returned: _

Sponsored by: Clerk of Council



T-T7659

RECORD OF ORDINANCES

G RHMENT FLmi & SUPPLIES Bas-224 5358 MM NO. 30043

Ordinance No. Passed .20

AN ORDINANCE RATIFYING THE CONSENT TO AN ASSIGNMENT
OF THE COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA AGREEMENT.
SCHOOL  COMPENSATION AND SCHOOL DONATION
AGREEMENTS (THE ~CRA AGREEMENTS™) WITH GEIS
STREETSBORO 43 NORTH. LLC TO ROUTE 43 NORTH. LLC AND
FURTHER AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR TO
EXECUTE THE CONSENT TO AN ASSIGNMENT OF THLE CRA
AGREEMENTS WITH ROUTE 43 NORTH. LLC TO 10242 STATE
ROUTE 43 NORTH. LLC. A TAX INCENTIVE ESTOPPEL
AGREEMENT AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY TO EXPEDITE
THIS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITY.

WHEREAS, it the policy of the City of Streetsboro 10 create and nurture economic
conditions that will increase business opportunities, create jobs, and improve the economic
welfare of the residents of the City: and

WHEREAS, 10 encourage development. the City of Streetsboro. pursuant to
Ordinance No. 2016-116. adopted by Council on October 24, 2016. established the arca
within the City as a Community Reinvestment Area {the "CRA™) under the authority of the
Ohio Revised Code Sections 3735.65 through 3735.70: and

WHEREAS. the Director of the Ohio Development Services Agency. pursuant to
Ohio Revised Code Section 3735.66 approved the creation of the Strectsboro Community
Reinvestment Act Number 2 on December 27", 2016: and

WHEREAS, the City received an Application for tax abatement within the “"CRA™
tor construction of a new facility. on property owned by Geis Streetsboro 43 North. LLC. an
Ohio limited liability company: and

WHEREAS. in order to facilitate the Project and for the purpose of encouraging
economic development within the Community Reinvestment Area, this Council enacted
Ordinance No. 2020-105, which authorized the execution and delivery of a Community
Reinvestment Area Agreement with Geis Streetsboro 43 North, LLC in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit “A™ (the "CRA Agreement™) as required by Section 3735.671 of the
Revised Code; and

WHEREAS. the Streetsboro Local School District and the Maplewood Career Center
School District were provided with notice of the intent of the City of Streetshoro to enter
imo a CRA Agreement with Geis Streetsboro 43 North, LLC. on June 24" 2020 as
prescribed by Ohio Revised Code Section 3735.671: and

WHEREAS, on September 14™, 2020. the City executed a consent 1o the assignment
of the CRA Agreement. the School Compensation and School Scholarship Donation
Agreement (the “CRA Agreements™) and the Project by Geis Streetsboro 43 North, LLC. an
Ohio limited liability company to Route 43 North, LLC. a Delaware limited liability
company. which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B.” the execution of which must be ratitied
by this Council; and

WHEREAS. Route 43 North. LLC desires to assign the CRA Agreements and the
Project to 10242 State Route 43 North, LLC. attached hereto as Exhibit “C.” the execution
of which must be approved by this Council; and

WHEREAS. it in further necessary to approve the execution of a Tax Incentive
Estoppel Agreement. attached hereto as Exhibit “D.” verifying that the 1erms and conditions
of the CRA Agreements have been complied with: and



RECORD OF ORDINANCES

GOVERNMENT FORMS & SUPPLIES B44-224-3338 FORM NO. 30043

Ordinance No. Passed , 20

WHEREAS, the Streetsboro Local School District and the Maplewood Career Center
School District will be provided notice of the assignment pursuant to Section 15 of the
separate School Compensation Agreement and Section 2 of the Donation Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Streetsboro.
Portage County. Ohio, that:

SECTION 1: This Council hereby finds and determines that execution of the
assignment of the CRA Agreements by Geis Streetsboro 43 North, LLC to Route 43 North,
LLC is hereby ratified.

SECTION 2: This Council hereby authorizes the Mayor to execute a Tax Incentive
Estoppel Agreement verifying that the terms and conditions of the CRA Agreements have
been complied with.

SECTION 3: This Council hereby authorizes the Mayor te execute a consent to an
assignment of the CRA Agreements and the Project by Route 43 North, LLC. to 10242 State
Route 43 North, LLC.

SECTION 4: This Council further authorizes the Mayor and other city officials 1o
prepare and execute such other documents and agreement and to all other things as are
necessary for and incidental to carrying out the requirements of this ordinance and the terms
of the attached agreement together with any revisions or additions thereto.

SECTION 5: It is found and determined that all formal actiens of this Council
concerning and relating to the adoption of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting
of this Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that
resuited in such formal action were in meetings open 1o the public, in compliance with all
legal requirements, to the extent applicable, including Chapter 107 of the Codified
Ordinances.

SECTION 6: This ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure
necessary for the preservation of the public peace. health, safety, convenience and welfare
of the residents of this City for the reason that the Council wishes to act expeditiousty in
expanding economic opportunitics within Streetsboro, and provided it receives the
affirmative vote of three-fourths of the members elected or appointed to Council, it shall
take effect and be in force immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor.

PASSED:

Date Steve Michniak, President of Council
ATTEST:

Caroline L. Kremer, Clerk of Council
APPROVED:

Date Glenn M. Broska, Mayor

Prepared and approved as to legal content by:
David L. Nott, Law Director

Date Submitted to Mayor for Approval: Returned:

Sponsored by: Patrick O"Malia, Economic Development Director / CRA Housing Director



EXHIBIT
T-7659

Exhibit "A"

mecltyofsu'embom andGelsStuetsbomﬁMuC
CRA Agreement Number 2020-01

This Agreement mace and entered into by and between the City of Streetsboro, Portage County,
Ohio, a chartered city with its City Hall located at 555 Frost Road, Streetsboro, Ohio 44241 (herein referred
to as “City”} and Geis Streetsboro 43 North, LLC, an Ohio limited liability corporation, with its principal
offices located at 10020 Aurora Hudson Road, Streetsboro, Ohio 44241 (herein referred to as "Company”).
All of the above are collectively referred to as “Parties.”

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Streetshoro, Ohio, by Ordinance No. 2016-116, passed on
October 24, 2016, designated an area within the City as a Community Reinvestment Area (“CRA”) pursuant
to Chapter 3735 of the Ohlo Revised Code; and

WHEREAS, on the 27 day of December, 2016, the Director of the Ohio Development Services
Agency confirmed the City’s findings regarding the CRA designated in Ordinance No. 2016-116 and
certified the CRA as Area No. 133-75014-160 . A copy of such confirmation is attached as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, Company is the fee simple title owner of approximately thirty one {31) acres of real
property commonly known as Permanent Parcel 35-006-00-00-006-001, legally described in Exhibit “B*
attached hereto and incorporated herein as if fully written the (“Project Site”) located within the
Streetsboro CRA and the iand covered under this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Company desires to construct on the Project Site an approximately four hundred
thirty-four thousand {434,000) square foot new industrial/warehousing/logistics operations facility. The
Company estimates that total construction cost will be Nineteen Million Nine Hundred Ninety-Four
Thousand Dollars ($19,994,000) and the cost of the land purchase has been recorded as One Million Eight
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,800,000) and there Is no machinery, equipment, furniture or fixtures
{collectively, the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Project Site is currently vacant and there Is no inventory, machinery, equipment,
furniture or fixtures on the Project Site prior to the execution of this Agreement. Construction of the
Project will begin on approximately Saptember 1, 2020, or sooner after this Agreement takes effect, and
all acquisition, construction and installation suffident for a certificate of occupancy of the Project will be
completed no later than September 30, 2022 provided the CRA tax exemption is granted and the total
project investment is $21,794,000, plus or minus 5%; and

WHEREAS, Geis Companies, the parent of the Company undertaking the Project, has been a locally
owned company within the City for decades, and the City believes strongly In assisting locally owned
businesses; and



WHEREAS, the City Is desirous of providing Company with incentives available for the
development of the CRA Project under Chapter 3735 of the Ohio Revised Code; and

WHEREAS, the Company has submitted to the City an application for the CRA Tax Abatement
incentive, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “C” (satd application is hereinafter referred to as
“Application”™) and incorporated herein by reference as if fully rewritten; and

WHEREAS, the City has investigated the Application and has recommended the same to the
Council of the City on the basis that the Company is qualified by financial responsibility and business
experience to create employment opportunities within said CRA which will improve the economic climate
of the City; and

WHEREAS, the Company estimates that the construction payroll associated with the development
of the Project Site to be $6,700,000; and

WHEREAS, the Project will result in approximately 180 - 200 newly created jobs with a minimum
annual gross payroll of $9,125,000 within two (2) years after the completion of construction of the Project,
but no later than December 31, 2025, through December 31" 2032 (the “Employment Period”). The
Company estimates the following employment schedule:

Yeor 1: 72 FTE $3,650,000 annual payroll
Year 2: 180 FTE $9,125,000 annual payroll

All of the foregoing will take place within the boundaries of the CRA, provided that the appropriate

development incentives are available to support the economic viability of the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Project Site s located within the service territory of the Streetsboro City School
District Board of Education{the “District”) and the Maplewood Career Center Board of Education (the
“Ivs") and shall be henceforth be referred to cellectively as the *Schools”; The Company understands that
this CRA Agreement and Tax Abatement will only pertain to the Project Site; and

WHEREAS, the Schools have been made aware of the City’s desire to grant a CRA abatement for
the Project via written communication sent via mail along with a copy of the proposed Agreement as well
as the Application within the stated time frames prescribed by law pursuant to Section 3735.671 and
5709.83 of the Ohio Revised Code, and have been provided a copy of the CRA application; and

WHEREAS, In order for the City to provide a ten (10) year, one hundred percent (100%) exemption
in the CRA Agreement, 1t is necessary for the Schools to approve the exemption prior to the approval of
the CRA Agreement by City Council; and

WHEREAS, on>eptember 3 , 2020, the Company and the District entered into: {1) an agreement
requiring the Company to pay the District an amounts equal to 20% of the amount of taxes that the District
would otherwise be due and owing if this Agreement were not in effect (the “School Compensation
Agreement”) a copy of which Is attached hereto as Exhibit D and Incorporated herein by reference; and

2



(2) a School Scholarship Donatlon Agreement by and between Company and District (the “Scholarship
Agreement) in the form attached hereto as Exhibit € and incorporated herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, the District through the Streetsboro City School District Board of Education has: (1)
approved this Agreement on August 13, 2020 via resolution 2020-8-13 which Included the one hundred
{100%) real property tax exemption for ten {10] years; (2) consented to the approval and execution of this
Agreement; {3) approved and authorized the execution of the School Compensation Agreement; and {4}
approved and authorized execution of the Scholarship Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the School Compensation Agreement requires the Company to pay the JVS an
amounts equal to 20% of the amount of taxes JVS would otherwise be due and owing if this Agreement
were not in effect; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, by resolution 20-105, adopted August 25 , 2020 has approved the
terms of this Agreement and authorized its execution on behalf of the Clty.

NOW, THEREFORE, In consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter contained and the
benefit to be derived by the Parties and Schools from the execution hereof and In full compliance with
the Ohio Revised Code, the Parties and Schools herein agree as follows:

1. Company will cause the commencement of construction of a new building approximately four
hundred and thirty-four thousand (434,000) square feet in size in the City. Construction of
the Project will begin on approximately September 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as is possible
after this Agreement takes legal effect, and will be completed In approximately September of
2022 and will cost as follows:

a. Purchase of Land: $1,800,000
b. New Building Construction: $19,994,000
i. Total investment $21,794,000

2. Company estimates that the payroll associated with construction jobs for the construction of
the Project will be Six Million Seven Hundred Thousand Doflars {$6,700,000).

3. Company currently has no employees at Project Site since It is new construction but, through
its tenants at the Project, it will cause the creation of between one hundred eighty (180) and
two hundred (200) permanent full-time employees (i.e. 32 hours or more per week) within
two (2) years after completion of the Project, but no later than December 31, 2025,

4. The minimum gross annual payroll attributable to the employees set forth in item 3 above
shall be Nine Million One Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars {$9,125,000).

5. Company further agrees and shall require all tenants at the Property to report any full-time,
part-time, temporary or leased employees described in Section 3 and Section 4 together with

3



10.

this relevant payroll information to the City and / or the Tax Incentive Review Council (herein
referred to as “TIRC") annually to evaluate Company’s compliance with this Agreement. If
temporary or leased employees are used at this Project Site, Company agrees to cause the
applicable tenant to provide to the Clty and / or TIRC the business information for the agencies
managing these employees Including the Federsl I.D. Number of the employer of said
workers. For each year of this Agreement, Company shall provide to the City an annual report
by March 17 detailing the full ~ time, part - time, and / or leased employee payroll for the
previous year. The acceptance of this report shall be confirmed by the Housing Officer /
Economic Development Director in writing and sent to the Company address on file and
referenced within this Agreement.

Company shall cause the Project to be operated as proposed in the Application for the
exemption period of ten (10} years and Company agrees to use commerclally reasonable
efforts to have tenants occupy the bullding on the Project Site located at 10242 State Route
43, Streetsboro, Ohio for not less than the full exemption period. Company agrees to not file
any request for reduction in property valuation for the Project with the Portage County Board
of Revislon during the term of this Agreement except to the extent of any Increases in
property valuation after the Project’s initial full assessment of the land and improvements is
made, Such initial full property value assessment of the land and building Is expected to be
approximately Twenty-One Million Seven Hundred Ninety-Four Thousand Dollars
{$21,794,000).

Any expansion of the bullding, Project or Project Site must be ocwned and operated by the
Company or an affiliate thereof or a permitted assignee pursuant to this Agreement. Any
expansion to the building and/or, Project, of new construction on the Project Site that is
owned or operated by a person or entity who is neither a party to this Agreement nor an
affiliate thereof nor a permitted assignee, shall not receive any tax abatement set forth
herein,

Company shall provide, or cause to be provided, to the TIRC and the City Housing Officer /
Economic Development Director any Information reasonably required by the TIRC or City to
evaluate Company’s compliance with this Agreement, including the returns filed pursuant to
Section 5711.02 of the Ohio Revised Code if requested. Owner acknowledgas that they may
be subject to the penalty detailed in Section 11 if they fail to provide all requasted information
by March 1* of each year that the Company recelves a tax incentive per this Agreament.

Company and any lessees at the Project Site shall make reasonable efforts to assist and
cooperate with the City in encouraging other businesses to locate and remain within the
municipal boundaries of the City.

The City hereby grants to Company, upon passage by the Streetsboro City Coundl and
execution of this Agreement, a tax exemption for real property improvements (buildings

4



exclusively, no abatement on the land) made to the Project Site pursuant to ORC 3735.67
which shall be in the following amounts:

Years of Tax Exemption £xsmption Rate (Buliding)
Years 1 through 10 100%

a. The City has granted the above real property tax on building exemption based upon
the projected additional municipal income tax withholding to be received by the City
as o result of the minimum of the one hundred eighty (180) permanent full time
employees which Company shall cause to create within two (2) years after the
completion of the Project at the Project Site. This job figure equates to a minimal
annual payroll threshold of Nine Million One Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars
{59,125,000) for each calendar year of the Employment Period. No exemption from
real property taxes Is extended to the land.

b. On December 31%, 2025 and on December 31" of each subsequent year until
December 31%, 2032, if the annual payroll at the Project does not equal or exceed
Nine Million One Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand ($9,125,000), unless otherwise
agreed by the City through formal action of the City Council, the Company agrees to
make a payment in lieu of taxes to the City to make up the difference between the
actual recelved income tax and the amount of income tax that the City would have
received with said payroll. Income tax rates are two percent {2%) within the City and
an annual payroll of $9,125,000 equates to a net amount due of $182,500/annually.
To the extent that such Income tax coltections fall short of this figure in any given year
during the Employment Period, the Company shall pay the difference owed to the
City no later than December 31* of the following calendar year.

c. If the annual payroll at the Project during the Employment Period does not equal or
exceed Nine Million One Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($9,125,000) as
required by this Agreement and Company falls to make a payment in lieu of taxes to
the City as outlined in Section 10(b) above, unless otherwise agreed to by the City,
the percentage of the exemption may be reduced from 100% by an appropriate
percentage at any time and for any perlod of time as may be determined by the City
and / or the TIRC as this will be considered a material breach of the spirit of the
Agreement.

d. If the Company fails to make a payment in lieu of taxes to the City as outlined in
Section 10{b) above, the City Is hereby authorized to secure payment in lieu of taxes
through a lien on the exempted property at Project Site In the amount required to be
paid plus any fees that would be due in processing or filing the lien. Such lien shall
attach, and may be parfected, collected, and enforced in the same manner as a
mortgage lien on real property and shall otherwise have the same force and effect as
a mortgage lien on real property.

5



11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

e. The exemption commences the first year for which the real property Improvements
would first be taxable were that property not exempted from taxation, with such first
year to be determined by the City’s Housing Director / Economic Development
Director certification submitted to the Chairman of the City’s TIRC. No exemption
shall commence before January 1%, 2023 nor extend beyond December 31%, 2032
unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties and the Schools.

Company shall pay an annual fee equal to the greater of one percent {1%) of the amount of
taxes exempted under this Agreement or Five Hundred Dollars {$500), whichever Is greater;
provided, however, if the value of the exemption exceeds Two Hundred Fifty Thousand
Dollars ($250,000) the fee shall not exceed Two-Thousand Five Hundred Dollars {$2,500). The
fee shall be pald to the City of Streetsboro within thirty {30) days after receipt of an invoice
each year that this Agreement is in effect. This fee shall be deposited in a special fund created
for such purpose and shall be used for the purpose of complying with the CRA Annual
Reporting Requirements as specified in Section 3735.671(D) of the Ohio Revised Code and by
the Tax Incentive Review Councll created under Section 5709.85 of the Ohio Revised Code
exclusively for the purpose of performing the duties prescribed under that section.

The Company further agrees to cause its affiliated company, Mannix Company, to donate an
approximately 5.56 acre site known as permanent parcel number 35-012-00-00-001-009 (the
“Donated Parcel”) to the City, at a value determined by an appraisal. The Company shall cause
the following improvements to be completed prior to the donation and transfer of the
Donated Parcel to the City: (1) install gravel roadway improvements from the Donated Parcel
to Aurora-Hudson Road, (2) install a gravel parking area on the Donated Parcel; and (3)
construction of a walking trail around the lake within the Donated Parcel. The City will own
and use the Donated Parcel as a public park and be responsible for any and all maintenance
of the Donated Parcel after the transfer.

Within thirty (30) days after receipt of an invoice from the City, the Company shall remit a
one-time donation of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) to the City or its authorized designee
for purposes of celebrating the Streetsboro Bicentennial on or before December 31, 2020.

Within thirty (30) days after receipt of an invoice from the City, the Company shall remit an
annual donation, commencing In the year 2023 and thereafter for each year the exemption is
effective of Five Thousand Two Hundred Dollars {$5,200) to the City for purposes of improving
the local park and recreation facilities and amenities.

After receipt of an invoice from the Schools, the Company shall remit an annual donation
commencing in the year 2023 and thereafter for each year the exemption is effective, of One
Thousand Two-Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($1,225) pursuant to the Scholarship



16.

172.

l1a.

19,

20.

Agreement with the District, for use and distribution by the Streetsboro Education Foundation
for the purpose of scholarships and/or grants for students who are residents of Streetsboro.

Pursuant to the terms of the School Compensation Agreement, the Company agrees to
annually pay within thirty (30) days after involce from the District, commencing In the year
2023 and thereafter for each year the exemption is effective, to the JVS and District,
respectively, twenty percent (20%) of the value of the property tax abated via the property
tax exemption that each of JVS and the District would otherwise be due but for the property
tax exemption under this Agreement. For example, if the Project would have generated $100
in total property tax and the District typically receives 72% and the JVS receives 5% of the
property tax then the JVS would be owed $1 (20% of $5) and the District would be owed
$14.40 (20% of $72). It is further agreed and understood that the combined compensation
payments made pursuant to the terms of the aforementioned Agreements shall not exceed
the amount the District and VS would have received had the Project Site not been exempted.

Company shall pay such real and tangible personal property taxes as are not exempted under
this Agreement and are charged against such property and shall file all tax reports and returns
as required by law. If Company fails to pay such taxes or file such returns and reports,
exemptions from taxation granted under this Agreement are rescinded beginning with the
vear for which such taxes are charged or such reports or returns are required to be filed and
thereaftar.

The City shall perform such acts as are reasonably necessary or appropriate to effect, claim,
reserve, and maintain exemptions from taxation granted under this Agreement including
without limitation joining in the execution of all documentation and providing any necessary
cartificates required in connection with such examinations.

If for any reason the City revokes the designation of the area, entitiements granted under this
Agreement shall continue for the balance of ten (10) years unless Company materially fails to
fulfill its obligations under this Agreement and the City terminates or modifies the exemption
from taxation pursuant to this Agreement.

if Company materially fails to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement, subject to any and
all cure rights pursuant to this Agreement, or if City determines that the certification as to
delinquent taxes required by this Agreement is fraudulent, the City may terminate or medify
the exemptions from taxation granted under this Agreement and deny or modify future tax
exemptions and abatements heretofore granted from the date of the Company’s breach or
default. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in the event
Company shall fail to perform a monetary obligation, Company shall have ten {10) days from
its receipt of written notice from the City to that it has falled to perform such monetary
obligation to cure such monetary obligation. In the event Company fails to perform a non-
monetary obligation, Company shall have thirty (30) days from its recelpt of written notice

7



21,

22,

23,

24.

25.

from the City that it has falled to perform such non-monetary obligation to cure such non-
monetary obligation.

Company hereby certifies that at the time this Agreement s executed, it does not owe any
delinquent real or tangible persanal property taxes to any taxing authority of the State of
Ohio, nor does it owe delinguent taxes for which Company is liable under Chapters 5733,
5735,,5739.,5741.,5743,, 5747, or 5753. of the Ohio Revised Code. For the purposes of this
certification, delinquent taxes are taxes that remain unpald on the latest day prescribed for
payment without penalty under the Chapter of the Ohlo Revised Code governing payment of
those taxes.

Company affirmatively covenant that they do not owe: (1) any delingquent taxes to the State
of Chio or a political subdivislon of the State; (2) any moneys to the State or a State agency
for the administration or enforcement of any environmental laws of the State; and (3} any
other moneys to State, a State agency or political subdivision of the State that are past due,
whether the amounts owed are belng contested In a court of law or not.

This Agreement and the tax abatement herelin, shall run with the land, but is not transferable
or assignable by Applicants and Owner without the express, written approval of the City,
which approval will not unreasonably be withheld, At the time of any assignment, the City
agrees to provide, upon not less than ten {10) business days prior written request, an estoppel
certificate certifying that this Agreement is in full force and effect {unless such is not the case,
in which case the City shall specify the basis for such claim), that the requesting party is not
in default of any term, provision or condition of this Agreement beyond any applicable notice
and cure provision {or specifying such claimed default) and certifying such other matters
reasonably requested by the requesting party. At such time as the City has consented to an
assignment, the assignee shall certify or agree in writing that it will be bound to all of the
terms of this Agreement from the date of such assignment and the City shall seek to enforce
the Agreement against assignee for any failure to perform under the Agreement occurring
after the date of such assignment.

Exemptions from taxation granted under this Agreement shall be revoked if it is determined
that Company, any successors, or any related members {as those terms are defined in Division
E of Section 3735.671 of the Ohio Revised Code) has violated the prohibition against entering
Into this Agreement under Division E of Section 3635.671 or Section 5709.62 or 5709.63 of
the Ohlo Revised Code prior to the time prescribed by that division or either of those Sections.

The Company represents and warrants to the City that, as of the Effective Date, Company has
not knowingly made any false statements to the City concerning an apglication for economic
development assistance in connection with this Agreement. If the Company has been fully
adjudicated, after being provided with 120 days written notice, an opportunity to respond,
and an administrative hearing under Ohio Revised Code Chapter 119 no earlier than 60 days



26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

after notice is provided, to have knowingly made a false statement to the City to obtain the
CRA real property tax exemptions, the Company shall be ineligible for any future economic
development assistance from the State of Ohio, any State of Ohio agency or a political
subdivision pursuant to Chio Revised Code Section 9.66 {C)1. Any person who provides a false
statement to secure economic development assistance may be guilty of falsificatfon, a
misdemeanor of the first degree, pursuant to Chio Revised Code Section 2921.13(D)(1}, which
is punishable by a fine of not more than $1,000 and/or a term of imprisonment of not more
than six months.

Company shall at the time of application hereln pay the sum of $750 to the State of Ohio
Development Services Agency, to be used for the filing of the CRA once it is spproved by all
Parties and S$chools to this Agreement. The City Housing Officer / Economic Development
Director shall cause the CRA Agreement and all supporting documents to be filed with the
State of Ohlo Development Services Agency within fifteen {15) days of approval by the City of
Streetshoro City Council.

If any provision of this Agreement or the application of any such provision to any such person
or any circumstance shall be determined to be invalid or unenforceable, then such
determination shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement or the application of such
provision to any other person or circumstance, all of which other provisions shall remain in
full force and effect.

The Parties covenant and agree that they are prohibited from challenging the validity of this
Agreement or the CRA. [n that regard, the Company and the City waive any defects in any
proceedings related to the CRA or this Agreement.

No covenant, obligation, or agreement is deemed to be a covenant, obligation or agreement of
any present or future member, officer, agent, or employee of the Parties other than in his or her
official capacity, and neither officers of the City, members of the legislative authority of the City,
nor any officers of Company executing this Agreement are liable personally under this
Agreement or subject to any personal lability or accountability by reason of the execution
thereof or by reason of the covenants, obligations, or agreements of the Parties contained in this
Agreement.

The Parties and Schools acknowledge that this Agreement must be approved by formal action
of the legislative authority of the City of Streetsboro, and its applicable boards and
commissions, as a condition for this Agreement to take effect. This Agreement takes effect
upon the effective date of such approval and signature herein by the Mayor of the City of
Streetsboro.



31. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to
constitute an original, but all of which together shall constitute but one and the same Instrument.

32. Company agrees to notify the City within 30 business days after they have entered into a lease
agreement with a tenant to occupy the new building. Company shall provide to the City the
length of the lease term in the lease agreement, including any optians to extend said lease
term.

33. Unless terminated earlier pursuant to its terms, this Agreement shall be In full force and effect
until December 31" of the last tax year for which exemptions can be claimed, after which this
Agreement and the obligations of all parties shall hereto terminate. The Company has the
right to terminate this Agreement for any reason or no reason at all by delivering a signed
written instrument to the City at least three (3) months prior to the desired termination date.
Receipt of a termination from the Company to the City shall terminate exemptions provided
herein to the Company, its Affiliates, Permitted Transferees, successors and assignees,

34, Company acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is a public record subject to
disclosure (after redaction for information that may be exempt from disclosure as described
below) under the State of Ohio’s public record laws. The City acknowledges and agrees that
the State’s public record laws exempt from disclosure certaln types of records, materials and
information, including without limitation tax returns and related information (ORC Sections
718.13, 5703.21, 5711.101); records confidential under other state or federal law (ORC
Section 149.43 (A)(v)); social security numbers (ORC Section 149.45); trade secrets and
economic development project information {ORC Sections 122.36, 1333.61 et seq); and
financlal information (ORCE Section 122.75). The Clty agrees to use adequate safeguards to
maintain the security of all materials, communications, data and information related to this
Agreement or supplied by the Company in connection with this Agreement and to maintain
confidentiality of those materials, communications, data and information to the extent
permitted by Ohlo law.

35. Any notices, statements, acknowledgements, consents, approvais, certificates or requests on
behalf of either party shall be made in writing and addresses as follows:

As to the City: As to the Company

City of Streetsboro Geis Streetsboro 43 North, LLC
Attn: Law Director Attn. General Counsel

9184 St. Rt. 43 10020 Aurora Hudson Road
Streetsboro, OH 44241 Streetshoro, OH 44241

{End of Document. Signature Page follows)



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Streetsboro, Ohio, and Gels Streetsboro 43 North, LLC, have
entered into this Agreement by signatures of their appropriately authorized officers set forth below.

City of Streetsboro Geis Streetsboro 43 North, LLC
Bv: ‘&“ -)-k M Bv:

Glenn M, Broska, Mayor Gregory M. Geis, Manager
Date:m.,&‘i"o_ Date:
Witnesses: Witnesses:

Signed Witness Name Signed Witness Name

. ' Iy
Printed Printed

kiin Beni, Law Director

11



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Streetshoro, Ohio, and Gelis Streetsboro 43 North, LLC, have
entered into this Agreement by signatures of their appropriately authorized officers set forth below.

Clty of Streetsboro

By:

Glenn M. Broska, Mayor
Date:

Witnesses:

Signed Witness Name

Printed

Approved as to Form:

Franklin Beni, Law Director

11

Gels Streetshoro 43 North, LLC

By:

Gregory M

Date: L’i {2r£

, Manager

Witnesses:

AR S

Signed Witness Name

_ e MagtSi

Printed




LIST OF EXHIBITS

Exhibit A - Certification of Streetsboro CRA from ODSA
Exhibit 8 ~ Legal Description of the Project Site

Exhibit C — Application for CRA Incentive

Exhibit D = School Compensation Agreement

Exhibit E - Scholarship Agreement



Exhibit A
Certification of Streetshoro CRA from ODSA

Ohio ' s agency

dlen W Rasich

Borid Goadmen

OHIO'S COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA PROGRAM
CITY OF STREETSBORO
STREETSBORO COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA NO. 2
CONFIRMATION - Area No. 133-75014-180

Upon examination of (a) the “Petiion for Area Confimation® of
Stresisboro Community Reinvestmen! Area No. 2 submitted by the Cliy
Strestshoro on November 22, 2016, (b) a certified copy of Community
Reinvestment Area Crdinance No. 2016-118 adopted by the Councll of the
of Streetsboro on October 24, 2016: {c) 8 survey of the housing conditions
axisting in the proposed area; (d) the wiitten deacription of the City of Streetsboro
designsted Streetsboro Community Reinvestment Area No. 2, {e) 8 map of the

ares; and (g) a review of the findings of the staff of this Agency. | have
determined that the area 8o designated meets the requirements of Ohio Revised
Code Saction 3735.68.

Accordingly, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 3735.68, | hereby confirm
the findings of the Clty of Streetsboro 10 be valid and consistent with applicable
legislative requirements. The ares designated as the Streetsboro Community
Reinvestment Area No. 2 by the Chy of Streetsboro within the aforementioned
“Petition for Arsa Confirmation” is determined to be 8 Community Reinvestment
Area

o3

g

Executed st Columbus, Ohio, this __27¢F _ day of December. 2016

David Goodman
Director
Ohio Development Services Agency

REC'D Y/

JAN 03 207

Twe. Aaasistant Director

CLERK OF COUNCIL
STREETSBORO, QIO



Exhibit B
Legal Description of Project Site

Parcel A
State Route 43
Streetsboro, Ohio

Situated in the City of Streetsboro, County of Portage and State of Ohio, and known as being part of Original
Streetsboro Township Lot Nos. 6 and 16, further known as being a portion of those lands conveyed to Geis
Strectsboro 43 North, LLC by deed recorded in Document No. 201910670 of Portage County Records, said
premises being more particularly bounded and described as follows:

Beginning at a | inch iron pin found inside a monument box assembiy at the intersection of State Route 43,
60 feet wide, and the centerline of Frost Road, 60 feet wide, said point also being the southwesterly corner
of the aforementioncd Lot 16; thence North 00 degrees 31 minutes 45 seconds West along the centerline of
State Route 43, also being the westerty line of said Lot 16, a distance of 2551.65 feet to a Mag nail set at
the PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BEGINNING of the premises herein described;

Course No. 1:  Thence continuing North 00 degrees 3] minutes 45 seconds West along the centerline of
State Route 43, also being the westerly line of said Lot 16, a distance of 156,80 feet to a Mag nail set st the
northwesterly corer thereof, also being the southwesterly corner of the aforementioned Lot 6:

Course No. 2:  Thence North 00 degrees 53 minutes 13 seconds West along the centerline of State Route
43, also being the westerly line of said Lot 6, a distance 0f 868.72 feet to a Mag nail set at the southwesterly
corner of lands conveyed to the City of Streetsboro, Ohio by deed recorded in Document No. 201108763
of Portage County Records, said point being witnessed by a ! inch iron pin found (1 foot deep) distant
North 88 degrees 23 minutes 10 seconds East, 30.28 feet therefrom;

Course No, 3: Thence North 89 degrees 01 minutes 37 seconds East along the southerly line of said City
of Streetsboro lands, and along the southerly line of Sublot 3 in Streetsboro Industrial Park Co. Plat No. 2,
recorded in Plat 1994-20 of Portage County Records, also being the southerly line of lands conveyed to
1400 Miller Pkwy, LLC by deed recorded in Document No. 201416918 of Portage County Records, and
along the southerly line of lands conveyed to Onex Construction, Inc. by deed recorded in Document No.
200325330 of Pontage County Reconds, and along the southerly line of Block "C" in the aforementioned
Plat 1994-20 of Portage County Records, also being the southerly line of lands conveyed to Safeguard
Technology, Inc. by deed recorded in Document No. 200818698 of Portage County Records, and the
southerly line of lands conveyed to The University of Akron Foundation by deed recorded in Official
Record Volume 317, Page 564 of Portage County Records, a distance of 1740.35 feet to a 5/8 inch iron pin
set,

Course No. 4: Thence South 21 degrees 53 minutes 51 seconds West a distance of 199,54 feet to a 5/8
inch iron pin set;

Course No. 5:  Thence South 67 degrees 11 minutes 30 seconds West a distance of 117.46 feet to a 5/8
inch iron pin set;

Course No. 6: Thence North 89 degrees 38 minutes 43 seconds West a distance of 55.77 feet 1o a 5/8 inch
iron pin set;

14



Course No. 7. Thence South 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East a distance of 776.51 feet to 8 5/8 inch
iron pin set;

Course No, 8; Thence North 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West a distance of 467.57 feet to a 5/8
inch ircn pin set;

Course No.9:  Thence North 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West a distance of 169.03 feet to a 5/8
inch iron pin set;

Course No. 10: Thence North 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West a distance of 835.53 feet o a 5/8
inch iron pin set;

Course No. 11: Thence South 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East a distance of 217.16 feet to a 5/8 inch
iron pin set;

Course No. 12: Thence North 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West and passing through a 5/8 inch iron
pin set on the easterly line of State Route 43 at 153.64 feet, a total distance of 183.64 feet to the Principal
Place of Deginning and containing 31.8804 acres (1,388,710 square feet) of land including 0.7065 acre
(30,773 square fect) within the right of way of State Route 43 (29.9042 acres (1,302,628 square feet) within
O. L. 6 and 1,9762 acre (86,082 square feet) within O. L. 16), according to a survey by Christopher J.
Dempsey, Professional Land Surveyor No. 6914 of Dempsey Surveying Company on June 4, 2020, being
the same more or less but subject to all legal highways and casements of recerd.

All iron pins set are 5/8 inches in diameter by 30" long with a yellow plastic cap stamped “C. Dempsey
P.S. 6914",

Bearings are referenced to Grid North of the Ohio Statc Plane Coordinate System North Zone, NAD 83
Datum.

15



Exhibit C
Application for CRA Incentive

(Attached Hereto)

16



City of Streetsboro

9184 State Routs 43
Sireetsbosn, OH 44241

(330) 626 3661

Community Reinvestment Area Application

Thank you for considering the Clty of Strectshoro fos your home s efther o resident or
bdn‘.u. The City of Streetsboro ks a progressive ond business fricodly commmmity G
1a pleased to offer our home owners, offiee/retadl (commercial) aod industrisl properties a
tax shetement progrem (hrough (he Community Retnvestrment Asea (CRA). Tho CRA bs
» property Lax abafemen to benefit propesty owners who reoovats existing bulldings or
consiyuct BEW oDes.

Please noto (bat the Clty of Streetsboro belisves that taxation is the rele end cxemptian ks
1ho exception. Not every project thet bs eligibls within the CRA will receive an
exemption. Tux inceatives sre uscd by the sdmintstration strategically to scoomptish
desirous end goals, such #3 encounging economie stability, malstsining property valves
s0d groerating new croployment opportunities. We realize that economic development
incentives can be trichy and confusing. As such, wo bave crested en easy to use and
understand pplicstion that fully explains the purpose, geography and timbs of the wol.
Sbould you noed additions) help completing the epplication, or have furthes questions,
Mhmmbmhmmﬂmm Putrick O"Malia,
330-626-4942 extension 4104 or pomalia@cityofstreetshorn.com

17



Section §:  Legal Autbority and Boundaries

The Commvunity Relovestmeni Area (CRA) #2152 tax abatement economic

incentive offered by the City of Strcetsboro. The lepistaion creating the cuzvat CRA
was pasaed by City Councd) o October 24° of 2016 with Qrdinance Number 2016-116
fter the completion of » Houstng Cooditioa Survey tod xpproval frees tho Ol
Development Servioes Ageacy. The City of Sirestsboro Is legally asd éally autbortzed &
creato 3 CRA and the program cosfomms to the stipuintioss fovad in the Obio Revised
Cods Sections 373848 - 3738473,

The CRA covers & se! geography s defined n the following map:

’

CRA Boundary
2016

J AN i 1
oqu'hu.y 1}1\ J..\ ;', ]
ey P, i 3
X," ), ;9} "Q":,J ?‘ 5 fr’;"" ‘
i /8 -'

-,.:. i m;j}ﬁ% :
. TE‘,‘?:{;%

o ¥ '.-,
R R
m" \ It A gl h- _:____'
sy 2l | e +$ \\}3 | —




Soction2.___ Rates prd Temms

Residential remodel/ocw consiruction are eacouraged to contsct City Hall. Rates and
tesmus for now-realdestial projects are mubject to acgothtion with (e Hooavmic
Development Director and approval of City Council. The inforestion below reflects the
maxinsu temyrate, 00t evory project will qualily. Within the tegistation creating the
CRA, City Councit suthorized the following retes and teems.

Residenttal (please note that 3 or move muhi fxml] unifs ure nx cligible for cxemption)
Tem Rats

| Type Min bnvestmen!
Remodel @ unks 1 | $10,000 Jyun 0%
lews) el 1
Remode] (2 onitsor | $20,000 § yoans
mote)
New Coustroction (2 | n Tyan 50%
unita of less)
Commerclal S s

Trpe Min [svestment Term )
Conmerciat $50,000 Negotiable Upto 505 n
l negotiaizd
Industrisd

Tndustrial projects ruto of iax exemption depends on the amount lovested bul ihe term
(length of yeass) will depend on payroll and aro cogotlated on & case-by-case by,
Projects that exueed $15 miltion In acw kovestment gf $10 million in new payroll may be
negotisted by the Economic Development Directin withot referene to the (oliowiny
limbts:

Rate of Tax Haemptivn
Min lyvestment | Max Percent of Tox Paeaption
- 999.999 1 N
$1,000,000 - 2,999,999 L.l2,. o
= . 0%
| $A000000-9999999 (4%
| $10,000,000 - 15,000,000 R e
Term of Tax Exemspiion (in years)
Min New Payrull New Construction RebabyBailding Additicn
$500000-999999 |5 3 i
$1,000000-199999 16 - 4
1.000000-349999 |7 3
$2.500000-49999% |8 ¢
mm.m-‘._m.m 9 7
$7,000,000 - 10000000 | 10 B




Pleass oote the [ollowing;

1. Youare oot required to file an application for residential shaterment until the
construction is complete. Howeves, you o strongly encouraged to coardinate
with the Eoonomie Development Director prior to undertaking any ew
construction or modeling, There may be insiances where you make tagibie,
real improvements b0 your property but it will pot affeet your tax bi asd, & such,
wotld nof qualify for s reduction @ tares. Fot example, [f yoo wished to
endertabe » kitchen remodeling it may not changs the tax vatue of your oms as
you already have a Kitchen %0 8¢ fae a8 the Coanty Anditor {who sets tax rates) is
concerned i) may vol chage anything on your tax bill. Howevet, the addition of
pew Aquare footage, such a5 a 5o room or enclosing a porch aiay increase your
fax bilt

2 Residenlial projects that ae within the CRA snd do qualify for » tax tacettive are
non-ncgotuble. The miz and torm have been 621 in the egistation (see Section 2).



Fleas provide information oa the compaay, its officers or thuse owning more than 20%6.
Copy and use this page if more space iy nceded,

| CompuayNeme |  GEIS STREETSBORO 43 NORTH LLC (OR ASSIGNE)

10070 AURDRA HUDSOR ROAD o
Company Address |  STRFETSBORO, OK 44241

Ty
(LLG, eic) uc

Covtact BMail | JOES@GEISCONBT

Conlact Pwme | 330-528-1260

S e T ]
{CEO, etc)

ower/officer |  OREGORY QBIS, CEO
name & titho
Principal

ovwncy/olficer
n_ame&mh

1. Project jocation:
b. M’M'): =U06-U0-00-008
2. Nature of busipess (macvfacturing, distribution, wholessle, ete.):

REAL ESTATH DEVELOPMENT

3 Pd?;nsédwlMdMC&(S!Qbmmr
1

4. Mukei valoo of existing facility (as deterained for Soca! property tax):
$_33300

5. The applicant understands that no wurk may begin prior to the spproval of the
incentive 01 the agreament is oull and virid as the incentive was 0ot aecessary to
create the investment. The project anticipates breshing groand/aisting
consirection on _9/)/ , 2020 and esifmates completing the project oo
B , 20212, provided o 183 exemyxion Is granted.

SPUT IN 'l1'IH FUTURE FOR PROJECT



6. Eatimato the amogot by bo invested by the company to establish, expand, reaovate
of ocrupy the roject by expetise casegory:

R A D AMD Ty, SR S

s b N TR R
$

e i

7. To qualify for the CRA inccative, the company must be cusrend oo its tax agd
oiber monctary responsibilities to tho government. Does L company owe.
8. Aoy delinguent tares &0 the State of Obio o its politieat sybdivistnns?
Yeg i No_Xoo
b. Any mnneys to the Stato or a state ageacy for the administystion or
eufororment of any esviroamertal brws of the State?
Yes___ No X
¢ Aoy other mancys (o the State, o siste agency o1 » politeal sabdivision
of the Stato that ere past due, whetbes the smounts owed ary being

contested in a court of Law o7 pot,
Yes ___ No X
L Preiec lnformatien

Flexse provide information ou the project that the company ks seeking » CRA fncentive
for. ‘Tbis information will be presenicd 15 the parties that cvaluat if the grantisg of the
lacentive b pecessary and proper.

i. Project description:
APPROX 434,000 SF MULTI TENANT INDUSTRIAL BUILDING WITH 32 CLEAR

HEIGHT MULTIPLE TRUCK DOCKS AND DRIVE IN DOORS, ESFR SPRINKLESS,

AND MODERN COIUMN SPACING LOCATEL ON APPROX 30 ACRE STTF

2 Buinots's reasons for requosting tux incentives (be quantitatively' specifie ns
possible)

PROJECT NEFD)S THE INCENTIVF TO BR COMPEITTIVE IN THE

CURRENT MARKET ARTY 1 COMPETY WITH OTHER PROJE.CTS IN

DIFFERENT LOCALES WTTH SIMILAR INCENTIVE PROGRAMS.




3. Please list any sdMditional information, such a8 interoships or othes agreemests,
yuus compagy iotends to offer tn the school system o1 otber possible unkque
especis of how the project may beoefit the community,

ANNUAL SCHOLARSHIP TO CITY SCHOOL.  ANNUAL CONTRIBUTION TO CITY

T PARKS, DUNATHIN UFPARK LXRD TO UITY INCLUDING TMPROVESIENTS,
SCHOOLS WILE RLUIUVE 20% OF NORMAL TAXATION FIGURE,
T0

STREETSBORO BICENTENNIAL CELEBRATION

4. Estimate the business’s new ond retined positions thal wili occur a1 8 reauht of
this project if the tx exemption is granted:

Full - Time Part - Tioe Tesoporary /

Seasonmal

Newly Created: 80-200

Jobs to be Retained

ut Project Site:

S. Nstimate and itemize the now antual payroli that will be created if the tax
exemption is granted:

Pull - Thme Put-Time | Tempomry/

Newly Crested Jobs

Parzol: 9.125,000
Jobs to be Retalned
21 Project Sits
FPayroll;

6. Swicthe ume frame of the projected bhiring. 3 pears.
7. Estimnte of construction payrol):

[ Pl Time Part - Time
Coastruction Jobs
| Pagioll; i

Please [nitint on he following lines to demnnstrale that you undersitad the following
conditions of the CRA tax incentive should your application be considered for tax
abutement, This is oot intended to be an exhaustive or ull-cncompassing list of terms and
other terms and condilions may be preseet in the Boal coptract. This sectioa is

&5 2 covenience 10 you as the end user 80 you fully understand the imponzace of what
hind of contmctnal cbligations you may be required to exter Ento a3 8 recipient of  tax
Inceative,




I The exception commences the flrst year e which the real property would firs
bo taxsbie were that property nol exempted from taxativa, No exemption shal)
commencs before the stast of constuction or ather eutivities oor extead
beyond the torm of the agreement. Inftlals:

property kad shall file 2l tax reports and retorns as eequired by bew. i applican
fuils tw pay such taxes or fils such returms and reports, all Inceatives granted undes

tho sgreement are rescinded beginnlng with the year for which such taxes are
chatged or_such reports or retures are cequired o be filed and Lhereaficr
Lnitials

3. The spgiloall understands aud etests thot the spproval of the Schoal Districy,
mmwlmlhnhedwwﬁtyMMpnumvawsm

extended rato of kerm are tequested, the formal approval of the Schools must come
before the City of Streetsboro can take action oo the application. infufals:

4 The applicant hereby certifies that a1 the time of this spplication that the
requesting the CRA Incentive does not owe any delioguept read o7 ingible persom)
propony taxes to gny (aaing suthoriry of the State of Oblo, and does not owp
delinquent txes for which the company is izhle undes Chapter 5733, 5735, 5739.,
5741, 5747,, or 5753, of the Okio Revised Code, ur, if such delinquent tes are
owed, the company is currcatly paying the dellnqoent taxes passsant 1o o delinqrens
tax comtra enforoesble by the State of Ghio or a0 agent o+ instrumentaiy therend,
has filed n petition ia bankruptey uades 11 US CA. 101, et seq., o1 such o petition
has boen filed against the company. For the pusposes of the certification, delinquent
taxes are taxed Lhoi resuain oupaid on the atest day prescribed for payment withoot
peasity sodet Lhe chapter of (he Rovised Codo goversing payment of those taxes,
{nitals;

S. The cestifies that af the tleno of this spplication that the company
tequesting ths CRA incentive, ity sucoessor, or relaled membet, kas a0t within the
past fivo yoars closed o facility within the Sinto of Ohso that was subject o o CRA
tux exemption or an excraption under the Ohin Enterprise Zooe progrem (soe Obio
Revised Code 37355M(B). Initisls:

6 CRA inceatives are only offesed to that arv oot relocating cmployecs
from elsewhere in the Stato of Qhlo. A wlocailon ocours when  business moves
Jobs or assets froem e Ohio paliticsd sbdivision to enother A full definition of s
reliation ean bo found in the Ohlo Adrmisisirative Code Section 122:9-102, The
deiermination o relocotinn is exseciia) as if U detorayined lates by the Stats of Oblo
ihat the epplicant moved the jobs from elsswhere the CRA agreement could n some
cascs be voided. The spplicant bereby certifies that at the Lime of thiy eppication
that (e company requesting the CRA incentive, fty suocessor, or selated membey,
bas reviewed the shove referenced UAC statuts and the project does not mee) the
definiton of s selocation. If the projeet s a relocation it will tnform the City of
Streetsboro o writing so parties can eoondimle with the Stata of Oblo for fina)
determination us follirwing eiber procedures 1o still secure the CRA incentive, soch
&x the procedures detadled ln ORC 3735.673. Inhials;

1. U the spplicativn (o tas exemption i pproved but the materhally fadly to
fulfill its obligatiens outlined in this application, other than with respect o the
number of employes postions estimated to b created of retained undes this
sgreomeet, of If the City of Steetshoro determines tat the certification uy I

24



delinquent taxes required by this agreement Is franduless, the City of Streetsbor
tnmy terminate of modily the exemptions from tanation. Injtialy.

§. ‘Tt the compeny shafl meet with the Tax kncentive Review and
shall provide to the Tax Inceative Review Courcil amy infonmation rezsouably
roquired by the council Lo evahunte the company's complizace with the agrecment,
inctuding returns or anmual reports filed pursannt to section $711.02 of the Obio
Revised Codo if requested by the coancil. Inidal.

3 That the oembes of employee positiuns crested o by the apphicant s oot
oqual 10 or greater than 75% of the mmber of employee positinns cstimated to be
crated o7 retained nnder this agroement during o three-yent period, that (e City of
Stroetsboro haa the right to request that Lhe compasy repay the emount of taxes 0a
property thet wouhd have been payabls bnd the property not been axzmpied from
taxetion under thls agreement during et theeo-year pesiod. If rhe employee
positions are a0t created or retained in he agreed opon timelimo, the City of

Streetsboro may chosa o terminate o modify the exemptions from taxation
undet this agreement Instead of requesting tax repayment, Indtials:

10. The company caderstends that if granted the tncentive that the tem
» mositoring fre of 19 of the bensfil recsived of ibe incertive (misimum of
Eﬂ,ﬂmmﬂyn long as the CRA agreement is iy effect, Initiaks

n of this application eapresaly sutborizes ths City of Strestsboro, o ity
tgents, to contact the Okio Hovircmmentad Protection Agency to confirm statements
costained within this application rd to review spplicable coofidential records. As
pan of this appication, the basiness may also be requlred io dirocdly rquest from
ke Ohio Depastaent of Tasation er conplets v walver form eflowing the Ohlo
Department of Taxathos ) relcase specific tax reconds o the local jurisdartions
considering the inocmtive request fonter agrees to supply additlonal
{eformation vpon request. '

The npplicant affirmatively covenants that the infrrmarion contained in and submitied
with this application is complete and carree and fs awaze of the ORC Sections 9.66(C)1)
and 29211 XD)(1) pesalties for Eatsification which could result in the forfeiture of all
cameat 20 fotare economic dovelopment assistance bencfit 23 well as s fias of 0ol rore
ten $1,000 andor 8 term of imprisonraent of ot more than six months,

GRIS STREFTSRORO 43 NORTIS LLC gévé 0
Name of Enterprise

GREGORY GEIS, CEO
Typed Namo #od Thie

* A copy uf this propesal may be forwarded by the Clty of Stroetsboro to the Boasdy of
Hducation (City Schools, JVS, eic.) alang with noticn of the meeting date on which the
local povernmeat will review the proposal.




Please noto tbat copies of this propusal asust be incladed in e finatized CRA Agreement
end bo forwanded to the by Department of Taxation aad the Ol Depastment of
Development within fifteen (15) days of finad spproval.



Exhibit D
School Compensation Agreement

(Attached Hereto)

17



School Compensation Agreement
GEIS STREETSBORO 43 NORTH, LLC
Community Reinvestment #2020-0 1

This School Compensation Agreement (“Agreement”) by and between the City of
Streetsboro, a municipal corporation, with its offices at 555 Frost Road, Streetsboro, Ohio 44241
(the “City”), the Streetsboro City School District Board of Education, a public school district,
with its principal offices at 9000 Kirby Lane, Streetsboro, Ohio 44241 (“Streetsboro Schools™),
Maplewood Career Center Board of Education, 7075 State Route 88 Ravenna, Ohio
44266("“Maplewood Schools”), and Geis Streetsboro 43 North, LLC, or its nominee, 10020
Aurora Hudson Road, Streetsboro, Ohio 44241 (“the “Company") specifies the manner in which
and procedures to be used pursuant to Ohio Revised Code 3735 authorizing general compensation
relating to the Community Reinvestment Area tax abatement for the construction of a speculative
single or multi-tenant facility on parcel 35-006-00-00-006-001 in Streetsboro, Ohio 44241 in the
City’s Community Reinvestment Area #2. Each of the City, Streetsboro Schools, Maplewood
Schools, and the Company may be referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”.

WHEREAS, the Community Reinvestment Program, pursuant to Chapter 3735 of the
Ohio Revised Code authorizes cities and counties to grant real property tax exemptions on eligible
new investments; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, by Ordinance No. 2016-116, adopted October 24, 2016,
designated the area as a "Community Reinvestment Area" pursuant to Chapter 3735 of the Ohio
Revised Code; and

WHEREAS, effective December 27, 2016, the Director of Development of the State of
Ohio determined that the aforementioned area designated in said Ordinance No. 2016-116 contains
the characteristics set forth in Section 3735.66 of the Ohio Revised Code and confirmed said area
as Community Reinvestment Area #133- 75014-160 under said Chapter 3735 (the “Streetsboro
CRA"); and

WHEREAS, the Company is the fee simple title owner of approximately thirty-one (31)
acres of real property commonly known as Permanent Parcel 35-006-00-00-006-001 (“Project
Site™) located within the Streetsboro CRA; and

WHEREAS, the Company desires to construct on the Project Site an approximately four
hundred thirty-four thousand (434,000) square foot new industrial/warehousing/logistics
operations facility (the “Facility”). The Company estimates that total construction cost of the
Facility will be Nineteen Million Nine Hundred Ninety-Four Thousand Dollars ($19,994,000) and
the cost of the land purchase has been recorded as One Million Eight Hundred Thousand Dollars
($1,800,000) and there is no machinery, equipment, furniture or fixtures (collectively, the
“Project”™); and

WHEREAS, the City has acted pursuant to ORC Section 3735 within Ordinance
No:_2020-105 adopted on _August 25, 2020 1o grant a tax exemption to the Company
and entered into a formal Community Reinvestment Agreement on _ September 3, 2020 "¢




“CRA Agreement™); and

WHEREAS, the City has provided the Streetsboro Schools and the Maplewood Schools
notice of the Project and served them with notification pursuant to ORC Sections 3735.671(A) and
5709.83 by service of a copy of the proposed CRA Agreement and the CRA Application and
Streetsboro Schools and Maplewood Schools acknowledge receipt of same; and

WHEREAS, Section 5709.82 of the Ohio Revised Code provides for school districts to
enter into agreements for compensation in lieu of the real property tax revenue foregone as a result
of a real property tax exemption associated with a community reinvestment area; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have negotiated a 100% tax exemption on the assessed valuation
of the Facility on the Project Site for a term of 10 years, and subject to the terms of this Agreement
and the CRA Agreement entered into between the City and the Company; and

WHEREAS, the Streetsboro Schools and Maplewood Schools hereby agree to forego any
right or claim to compensation that they may have as a result of the aforementioned incentives
extended to the Company as a result of the project on the Project Site, except as provided in this
Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual promises,
covenants, and agreements hereinafter set forth by the City, the Streetsboro Schools the
Maplewood Schools, and the Company, agree as follows:

Section 1. Streetsboro Schools and Maplewood Schools (collectively, the “School Boards”™) hereby
approve the proposed CRA Agreement between the City and the Company, in substantially the
same form as attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and the real property exemption in the amount of
one hundred percent (100%) for ten (10) years for the Facility provided for therein. The real
property tax exemption shall apply only to the value of improvements to the land, as determined
by the Portage County Auditor. No exemption from real property taxes is extended to the land.

Section 2: The City will pay Forty Percent (40%) of (a) the income taxes levied and collected by
the City on the incomes of the persons employed in the construction in the Facility, the Company’s
employees at the Facility, and the employees of any tenants or subtenants at the Facility, provided
the payroll of such employees equals or exceeds one million dollars in any tax year for which the
Facility is exempted (the “Payroll Income Tax™), and (b) the payment in lien of taxes that the
Company bas agreed to make in Section 10(b) of the CRA Agreement to the City to make up the
difference between the actual received income tax and the amount of income tax that the City
would have received with said payroll (the “PILOT Income Tax") (collectively the “Shared
Income Tax Revenue”). “Employees™ as used herein shall be defined as all full-time, part-time,
temporary and leased employees. The Shared Income Tax Revenue shall be split between
Streetsboro Schools and Maplewood Schools in amounts proportional to their property tax millage
through this School Compensation Agreement. Payments will be made annually on or before April
30 of the following year of the CRA Exemption Period.

Section 3: Infrastructure Offset. Notwithstanding the provisions of ORC Section 5709.82(D), the



City shall be entitled no offset from the Shared Income Tax Revenue for infrastructure costs and/or
debt service on public infrastructure directly supporting the development of the Facility incurred
by the City in the preceding calendar year. The term “infrastructure costs” shall have the same
meaning as set forth under Section 5709.82(A)(2) of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 4: Review of Records. The School Boards may from time to time, with reasonable advance
notice, review the records of the City relating to the municipal income taxes it derived from the
project, in each case to the extent such information may be made available to the School Boards
without violating applicable laws relating to confidentiality of municipal income tax information.

Section 5: That the Parties acknowledge and agree this provision for income tax revenue sharing
is intended to provide partial compensation to the School Boards to lessen the impact of the CRA
exemption. In addition to the revenue sharing between the City and the School Boards described
in Section 2, the Company agrees to pay annually within thirty (30) days after invoice from
Streetsboro Schools, commencing the first tax year the Facility is exempted from taxation under
the CRA Agreement and thereafier for each year the exemption is effective, to Streetsboro Schools
and Maplewood Schools, respectively, twenty per cent (20%) of the value of the real property tax
abated via the real property tax exemption that Streetsboro Schools and Maplewood Schools would
otherwise be due but for the real property exemption. The payments shall be dispersed to each
school district in a proportionate manner to their current percentage of school property taxes
received for the sole benefit of the School Boards. For example purposes only, if the Facility would
have generated $100 in total real property taxes and the Streetsboro Schools typically receives
72% and Maplewood Schools typically receives 5% of the property tax then the Company would
owe a payment to Maplewood Schools of $1 (20% of $5) and a payment to Streetsboro Schools of
$14.40 (20% of $72). It is further agreed and understood that combined compensation payments
made pursuant to Sections 2 and 5 of this Agreement shall not exceed the amount the School
Boards would have received had the Facility project not been exempted.

Section 6: That, pursuant to that certain School Scholarship Donation Agreement between the
Company and Streetsboro Schools, commencing the first tax year that the Facility is exempted
from taxation under the CRA Agreement and thereafter for each year the exemption is effective,
the Company, upon receipt of an invoice from Streetsboro Schools, shall remit an annual donation
of One Thousand Two-Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars ($1,225.00) for use and distribution by the
Streetsboro Education Foundation for the purpose of scholarships and/or grants for students who
are residents of Streetsboro.

Section 7. The payment made by The City to Streetsboro Schools satisfies ORC Section
5709.82(C)(2) and shall be dispersed to each school district in a proportionate manner to their
current percentage of school property taxes received,

Section 8. The School Boards agree that the only compensation the School Boards will receive for
lost revenues due to the CRA Exemption is set forth in this Agreement and that the School Boards
shall not seek or be entitled to any other compensation from the Company or the City unless
otherwise mutually agreed to in writing signed by all Parties. Nothing in this Agreement shall be
construed to pledge the full faith and credit of the City.

Section 9. This Agreement may be amended or modified by the Parties, only in writing, approved
through legal process, and signed by all Parties to the Agreement or by applicable law changes.



Section 10. A Party shall be in default of this Agreement if (a) a party fails to make any payment
in this Agreement when due, and any such failure continues for thirty (30) days after receiving
written notice of default from the other party; (b) the party fails to perform any material obligation
under this Agreement and such failure continues uncured for more than thirty (30) days after
receiving a written notice of default from any other party (a "Default Notice"); or (c) a party
becomes insolvent or unable to pay its debts as they become due. Any such default, which
continues uncured beyond the thirty (30) day cure period above, shall constitute an "Event of
Default.” Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, beyond any applicable cure periods, and as
long as the Event of Default is continuing, a non-defaulting party may, at its sole option, exercise
one or more of the following remedies: (a) proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms
of, recover actual and reasonable direct damages for the breach of this Agreement; (b) demand
payment; and/or (c) exercise any other remedy which may be available to the party under
applicable law.

Section Il. No Party shall be liable for more than the sum of all payments owed by that Party
under this Agreement. In no event will any Party be liable to another Party under this Agreement
for any indirect, reliance, exemplary, incidental, speculative, punitive, special, consequential or
similar damages that may arise in connection with this Agreement.

Section 2. This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date as of the last date signed
by all Parties and shall remain in effect for such period as the CRA Exemption is in effect with
respect to the Facility.

Sectign 13. No waiver by any Party of the performance of any terms or provision hereof shall
constitute, or be construed as, a continuing waiver of performance of the same or any other term
or provision hereof.

Section 14. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement and understanding between the Parties
as to the subject matter contained herein and merges and supersedes all prior discussion,
agreements, and undertakings of every kind and nature between the Parties with respect to the
subject matter of this Agreement,

Section |5. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding in accordance with
its terms upon the Streetsboro Schools, Maplewood Schools, the City, and the Company, and their
respective successors and assigns. No Party shall assign this Agreement without the written
consent of the other Parties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall be permitted to
assign this Agreement to any permitted assignee under the CRA Agreement with only written
notice to the Parties. The City agrees to provide the School Boards with written notice of any
such assignment within thirty (30) days after such occurrence. The City further agrees that if
it approves the transfer of the Company’s interests in the CRA Agreement to another party,
the income tax revenue sharing provisions set forth in Section 2 above apply to the new
employees of any successor-in-interest to the Company, and/or to any unrelated third-party
who acquires the Facility and the Project Site.

Section 16. Should any portion of this Agreement be declared by the courts to be unconstitutional,



invalid or otherwise unlawful, such decision shall not affect the entire agreement but only that part
declared to be unconstitutional, invalid or illegal and this Agreement shall be construed in all
respects as if any invalid portions were omitted.

Section 17. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be
regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same Agreement. Captions
have been provided herein for the convenience of the reader and shall not affect the construction
of this Agreement.

Section 18, The undersigned represent and warrant that they are agents of their respective Parties,
duly authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of said Parties.

Section [9. This Agreement for all purposes shaill be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of Ohio.

Section 20. All payments, certificates, reports, and notices which are required to or may be given
pursuant to the provisions of this agreement shall be sent by regular mail, postage prepaid, and
shall be deemed to have been given or delivered when so mailed to the following addresses:

Law Director
City of Streetsboro
9184 State Route 43 Streetsboro, Ohio 44241

Superintendent
Streetsboro City School District Board of Education
9000 Kirby Lane, Streetsboro, Ohio 44241

Superintendent Maplewood Career Center Board of Education
7075 State Route 88
Ravenna, Ohio 44266

Geis Streetsboro 43 North, LLC
Attn: Legal Department

10020 Aurora Hudson Road
Streetsboro, Ohio 44241

Any Party may change its contact or mailing address for receiving notices and reports by giving
written notice of such change to the other Parties.

Section 21. The invalidity of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the other provisions
of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if any invalid portions
were omitted.

(End of Document. Signature Page Follows)



In witness whereof, the parties have caused this School Compensation Agreement to be
executed as of the Effective Date.

CITY m ETSBORO,

Glenn M.B ayor
Date: ©7/0 '2-020

STREETSBORO CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION

BY:
Superintendent
2>

Date: 9-/-20

MAPLEWOOD CAREER CENTER BOARD OF EDUCATION
BY:
Superintendent
Date:

GEIS STREETSBORO 43 NORTH, LLC

BY:
Gregory M. Geis, Manager

- —
Beni, Sm:e{sboro Law Director




In witness whereof, the parties have caused this School Compensation Agreement to be
executed as of the Effective Date.

CITY OF STREETSBORO
BY:

Glenn M. Broska, Mayor
Date:

STREETSBORO CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION
BY:
Superintendent
Date:

GEIS STREETSBORO 43 NORTH, LLC

BY; o
Gregory M. Geis, Manager
Date:

Approved as to form:

BY.
Franklin Beni, Streetsboro Law Director




In witness whereof, the parties have caused this School Compensation Agreement to be
executed as of the Effective Date.

CITY OF STREETSBORO
BY:

Glenn M. Broska, Mayor
Date:

STREETSBORO CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION

BY:
Superintendent
Date:

MAPLEWOOD CAREER CENTER BOARD OF EDUCATION
BY;

Superintendent
Date:

GEIS STREETSBOi(Z}?TH, LLC
BY; . e

G M. Geis, Managet / /,
Sy Midigsso ™ )
¥

Approved as to form:

BY:
Franklin Beni, Streetsboro Law Director




Exhibit A
CRA Agreement

(Attached Hereto)



Exhibit E
Scholarship Agreement

(Attached Hereto)

28



SCHOOL SCHOLARSHIP DONATION AGREEMENT

This SCHOOL SCHOLARSHIP DONATION AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made as
of the 3rd day of __ September 2020, by and between GEIS STREETSBORO 43
NORTH, LLC, whose address is 10020 Aurora Hudson Road, Streetsboro, Ohio 44241 ("GEIS");
and the STREETSBORO CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION, located
at 9000 Kirby Lane, Streetsboro, Ohio 444241 ("SCSD").

RECITAL

GEIS intends to construct new commercial property at Permanent Parcel 35-006-00-00-
006-001 in Streetsboro, Ohio (the “Property”), which property is located in an area designated as
a Community Reinvestment Area by the City of Streetsboro.

The City of Streetsboro intends to grant GEIS an exemption from 100% of the real property
taxation assessed on the Property for a period of 10 years (the "Exemption") pursuant to the rules
of Sections 3735.65 to 3735.70 of the Ohio Revised Code and that certain Commmnity
Reinvestment Area Agreement (the “CRA Agreement”) entered into by and between Geis and the
City of Streetsboro, Portage County, Ohio (the “City). As provided in Section 3735.67(D) of the
Ohio Revised Code, the tax Exemption shall first apply in the year the construction would first be
taxable but for the exemption granted.

As part of the Exemption and the CRA Agreement, GEIS has agreed to make certain annyal
donation payments (the "Donation") to the SCSD for purposes as described herein.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the promises contained herein,
and other good and valuable consideration, GEIS and the SCSD, intending to be legally bound,
hereby agree as follows:

Section |. Donation. Commencing the first tax year that the Exemption is in place, and
continuing for each year that the Exemption is in effect, GEIS agrees to make an annual cash
donation to The Streetsboro Education Foundation (the “Foundation”) c/o SCSD in an amount
equal to One Thousand Two Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars ($1,225.00) for use and distribution
by the Streetsboro Education Foundation for the purpose of scholarships and/or grants for students
who are residents of Streetsboro.

Section 2. Assignment. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding
in accordance with its terms upon, on SCSD and GEIS and their respective permitted successors
and assigns. This Agreement may not be assigned by GEIS without the prior written consent of
the SCSD, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
GEIS shall be permitted to assign this Agreement to any permitted assignee under the CRA
Agreement with only written notice to the Parties.

Section 3. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire School Scholarship
Donation Agreement and understanding between the parties as to the subject matter hereof, and



merges and supersedes all prior discussions, agreements, and undertakings of every kind and
nature between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. This Agreement
may not be modified or amended except by written agreement executed by both parties hereto.
The captions inserted in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no way define, limit,
or otherwise describe the scope or intent of this Agreement, or any provision hereof, or in any
way affect the interpretation of this Agreement.

Section 4. Execution of Agreement. This Agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts, all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument, and any

party to this Agreement may execute this Agreement by signing any such counterpart,

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Streetsboro City School District Board of Education and
Geis Streetsboro 43 North, LLC, bave entered into this Agreement by signatures of their
appropriately authorized officers set forth below.

GEIS STREETSBORO ?H,
BY:

Name:
Title:

Q)

STREETSBORO-CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF EDUCATION

BY:
Name:
Title:




merges and supersedes all prior discussions, agreements, and undertakings of every kind and
nature between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. This Agreement

may not be modified or amended except by written agreement executed by both parties hereto.
The captions inserted in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no way define, limit,
or otherwise describe the scope or intent of this Agreement, or any provision hereof, or in any
way affect the interpretation of this Agreement.

Section 4. Execution of Agreement. This Agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts, all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument, and any

party to this Agreement may execute this Agreement by signing any such counterpart.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Streetsboro City School District Board of Education and
Geis Streetsboro 43 North, LLC, have entered into this Agreement by signatures of their
appropriately authorized officers set forth below.

GEIS STREETSBORO 43 NORTH, LLC

BY:

Name:
Title:

STREETSBORO-CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF EDUCATION

8Y: 2 s A uid
Name:g.migmgi ih..d.fl o
Title:_Scaper:adendont



EXHIBIT
g T-7659

Exhibit "B"

Assignment and Assumption of Agreement

THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF AGREEMENT (this "Assignment”) is
made as of the {4#ay of September, 2020 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Geis
Strectsboro 43 North, LLC, an Ohio limited liability company ("Assignor™), and Route 43
North, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Assignee").

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, Assignor has transferred fee simple title to Assignee of the approximately
31-acre parcel of land located on State Route 43, Streetsboro, Ohio, being Parcel No. 35-006-00-
00-006-001 (the "Property");

WHEREAS, Assignor and the City of Streetsboro, Portage County, Ohic have entered
into a certain Community Reinvestment Arca Agreement (CRA Agreement # 2020-01 dated
September 3, 2020 (the "CRA Agreement”) relating to the Property and the new building to be
constructed thereon;

WHEREAS, Assignor and the Streetsboro City School District Board of Education and
the Maplewood Carcer Center Board of Education have entered into a certain School
Compensation Agreement (Community Reinvestment #2020-01) dated September 3, 2020 (the
“School Compensation Agreement™) related to the CRA Agreement;

WHEREAS, Assignor and the Streetsboro City School District Board of Education
entered into that certain Schoo! Scholarship Donation Agreement dated September 3, 2020 (the
“School Donation Agreement”) related to the CRA Agreement;

WHEREAS, Assignor desire to assign their right, title and interest in and to the CRA
Agreement, the School Compensation Agreement, and the School Donation Agreement
{collectively, the “CRA Documents”) to Assignee, and Assignee desires to assume Assignor's
right, title and interest in and to the CRA Documents; and

WHEREAS, Assignee will continue to develop the Project defined in the CRA
Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements hereinafter set forth,

and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged
by each of the parties hereto, Assignor and Assignee do hereby agree as follows:

1. Assignment. Assignor hereby assigns, conveys, and transfers to Assignee, its
successors and assigns, as of the Effective Date, all of the right, title and interest of Assignor in
and to the CRA Documents.

2. Assumption.  Assignec hereby accepts the foregoing assignment, and in
consideration thereof, hercby covenants and agrees that, from and after the Effective Date,
Assignee will assume and be bound by all of the covenants, conditions and obligations under the
CRA Docurnents that are to be observed, performed and fulfilled by the Assignor.



3 Successors and Assigns. The terms and conditions of this Assignment shall be
binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors

and assigns.

4, Miscellancous. This Assignment may be executed in any one or more
counterparts, cach of which, when so executed, will be deemed an original document, and all
such counterparts together shall constitute the same instrument Delivery of an executed
counterpart of this instrument by facsimile or other electronic means shall be equally as effective
as delivery of a manually executed original counterpart of this instrument. This Assignment
shall be governed by the laws of the State of Ohio.

(signatures follow immediately)



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Assignment as of
the day and year first above written.

ASSIGNOR:

Geis Streetsboro 43 North, LLC,
an Ohio limited liabjlity company




ASSIGNEE:

Route 43 North, LLC, a Declaware limited
liability company

By: Geis Streetsboro 43 North, LLC, its
Manager

By: %/
Gregory M. % its Authorized




CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT

The undersigned consents to the foregoing Assignment of the Community Reinvestment
Arca Agreement (CRA Agreement # 2020-01).

CITY OF STREETSBORO

o 0> ot

Glenn M. Broska, Mayor

Approv to Form:

in Beni, Law Director



EXHIBIT
g T-7659

Exhibit "cC"

Assipnment and Assumption of Agreement

THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF AGREEMENT (this "Assignment") is made as of
the day of , 2024 (the “Effective Date™), by and between Route 43 North, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company ("Assignor™), and 10242 State Route 43, L.P., a Delaware limited

partnership ("Assignee").
RECITALS:

WHEREAS, Assignor has transferred fee simple title to Assignee of the approximately 31-acre
parcel of land located on State Route 43, Streetsboro, Ohio, being Parcel No. 35-006-00-00-006-001 (the

"Property");

WHEREAS, Assignor, as successor in interest to Geis Streetsboro 43 North, LLC (“Geis 43”), and
the City of Streetsboro, Portage County, Ohio are parties to that certain Community Reinvestment Area
Agreement (CRA Agreement # 2020-01 dated September 3, 2020 (the "CRA Agreement") relating to the
Property and the building constructed thereon;

WHEREAS, Assignor, as successor in interest to Geis 43, and the Streetsboro City School District
Board of Education and the Maplewood Career Center Board of Education are parties to that certain School
Compensation Agreement (Community Reinvestment #2020-01) dated September 3, 2020 (the “School
Compensation Agreement”) related to the CRA Agreement;

WHEREAS, Assignor, as successor in interest to Geis 43, and the Streetsboro City School District
Board of Education are parties to that certain School Scholarship Donation Agreement dated September 3,
2020 (the “School Donation Agreement”) related to the CRA Agreement;

WHEREAS, Assignor desires to assign their right, title and interest in and to the CRA Agreement,
the School Compensation Agreement, and the School Donation Agreement {collectively, the “CRA
Documents™) to Assignee, and Assignee desires to assume Assignor's right, title and interest in and to the
CRA Documents; and

WHEREAS, Assignee will continue to develop the Project defined in the CRA Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements hereinafter set forth, and other
good and valuabie consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged by each of the
parties hereto, Assignor and Assignee do hereby agree as follows:

l. Assignment. Assignor hereby assigns, conveys, and transfers to Assignee, its successors
and assigns, as of the Effective Date, all of the right, title and interest of Assignor in and to the CRA
Documents.

2. Assumption. Assignee hereby accepts the foregoing assignment, and in consideration
thereof, hereby covenants and agrees that, from and after the Effective Date, Assignee will assume and be
bound by all of the covenants, conditions and obligations under the CR A Documents that are to be observed,
performed and fulfilled by the Assignor.

3. Successors and Assigns. The terms and conditions of this Assignment shall be binding
upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

4, Miscellancous. This Assignment may be executed in any one or more counterparts, each
of which, when so executed, will be deemed an original document, and all such counterparts together shall



constitute the same instrument. Delivery of an executed counterpart of this instrument by facsimile or other
electronic means shall be equally as effective as delivery of a manually executed original counterpart of
this instrument. This Assignment shall be governed by the laws of the State of Ohio.

(signatures follow immediately)



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Assignment as of the day and
year first above written.

ASSIGNOR:

Route 43 North, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By:

Name:

Its:




ASSIGNEE:

Exeter 10242 State Route 43, L.P.,
a Delaware limited partnership

By: Exeter 10242 State Route 43 GP, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, its general partner

By: EQT Exeter Industrial Core-Plus Fund IV REIT
[l, LP, a Delaware limited partnership, its sole member

By:

Name:

Title:




CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT

The undersigned consents to the foregoing Assignment of the Community Reinvestment Area Agreement
(CRA Agreement # 2020-01).

CITY OF STREETSBORO

By: __ o
Glenn M. Broska, Mayor

Approved as to Form:

By:
David L., Nott, Law Director



EXHIBIT
% T-7659

Exhibit "D"

TAX INCENTIVES ESTOPPEL

This Estoppel Certificate (this “Certificate’) is made effective as of , 2024
(the “Effective Date”), by the City of Streetsboro, Portage County, Ohio (the “City”), with
reference to (i) a Community Reinvestment Area Agreement dated September 3, 2020 (the “CRA™)
between the City and Geis Streetsboro 43 North, LLC, an Ohio limited liability company (the
“QOriginal Company™); (ii) a School Compensation Agreement dated September 3, 2020, by and
among the City, the Streetsboro City School District Board of Education, a public school district
(the “Streetsboro Schools”), Maplewood Career Center Board of Education (the “Compensation
Agreement”), and (iii) a School Scholarship Donation Agreement made as of the 3™ day of
September, 2020 by and between the Original Company and the Streetsboro Schools (the “School
Scholarship Agreement” and, together with the CRA and the Compensation Agreement, the “CRA4
Agreements”), in each case, as assigned to Route 43 North, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company (the “Successor Company”) pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption of Agreement
made as of the 14" day of September 2020 between the Original Company and the Successor
Company. Capitalized terms not defined in this Certificate will have the meanings assigned to
them in the CRA. Pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated [_], the Successor
Company will be assigning all of it rights, duties and obligations under the CRA Agreements to
Exeter 10242 State Route 43, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (the “Purchaser™), and the
Purchaser will be assuming all such rights, duties and obligations in connection with the sale (the
“Sale™) from the Successor Company of all of its interest in the Project and the Project Site.

The City hereby certifies, to the Purchaser, together with its successors and assigns that, as
of the Effective Date. the following is true and accurate:

1. The CRA Agreements are in full force and effect have not been modified or amended. True
and complete copies of the CRA Agreements are attached hereto as Exhibit A.

2, As contemplated under Section 12 of the CRA, the Original Company has caused its
affiliated company to donate the referenced 5.56-acre site to the City and caused the
corresponding improvements to be made to the Donated Parcel (as defined in the CRA)
after the transfer.

3. To the best of the City’s actual knowledge, all amounts due and owing under the CRA, the
Compensation Agreement and the School Donation Agreement with respect to the Project
and the Project Site, including the one-time payments due under Section 13 of the CRA,
have been paid by the Original Company and/or the Successor Company. There are no
unpaid amounts currently due and payable under the CRA Agreements.

4. To the best of the City’s actual knowledge, the Successor Company is not currently in
default under the CRA, the Compensation Agreement, or the School Donation Agreement
and no event or occurrence currently exists which, with the giving of notice or passage of
time, would constitute an event of default by Successor Company under the CRA, the
Compensation Agreement, and/or the School Donation Agreement.

5. The City has not initiated any action to terminate or modify the exemptions from taxation
granted or authorized under the CRA and, to the best of the City’s actual knowledge,



neither the Original Company nor the Successor Company have failed to materially fulfill
any of their obligations under the CRA where such failure could result in the City having
the right to terminate or modify the exemptions from taxation granted or authorized under

the terms of the CRA.

6. Following the Effective Date, notices to the “Company” under the CRA shall be sent to:

Exeter 10242 State Route 43, L.P.
Five Radnor Corporate Center
100 Matsonford Road, Suite 250
Radnor, PA 19087

Attention: Pete Lloyd

With copy to:

Chase Law Group

1447 York Road, Suite 505
Lutherville, MD 21093
Attention: Todd Chase

7. The City acknowledges that the Purchaser, along with its successors and assigns will rely
on this Certificate in connection with completing the Sale.

Nothing herein shall be deemed as amending or otherwise modifying the terms of the CRA,
the Compensation Agreement, or the School Donation Agreement.

CITY OF STREETSBORO, OHIO,
an Ohio municipal corporation

By:

Approved as to Form:

David L. Nott, Law Director



1st Rdg 08-12-2024

Tatead RECORD OF RESOLUTIONS 2nd Ry 08-26-2024
DARREIT BROTIERS - DAYTON, (HHIC i B
Resolution No, Passed ,

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE CITY OF
STREETSBORO LOGO DLESIGN AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY
BECAUSE IT IS IMMEDIATELY NECESSARY TO USE THE NEW
LOGO.

WHEREAS. the City Parks and Recreation Department recommended that the City
design a new City logo and branding guidelines; and

WHEREAS. by way of Ordinance No. 2023-60. this Council authorized the Mayor o
enter into a contract with Shaffer Branding Co. to create a new logo for the City of
Streetsboro and create marketing and branding guidelines: and

WIHEREAS. Shafler Branding Co. was able to use information and rescarch from the
branding project to create a new logo design for the City of Streetshoro and:

WHEREAS, the City of Streetsboro wishes to formally adopt this logo to ensure that
branding and messaging of the City of Streetsboro are consistent and of high quality.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT Resolved by Council of the City of Streetsboro. Portage
County. Ohio. thereto concurring:

SECTION 1: That the logo design attached hercto as Exhibit “A.” is formally adopted
as the new City of Streetsboro loge for all further use in communications, public materials.
website. displays. and all other places deemed necessary.

SECTION 2: It is found and determined that all formal actions ol this Council
concerning and relating to the adoption of this reselution were adopted in an open meeting of
this Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of s commitiecs that
resulted 1n such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all
legal requirements. to the extent applicable. including Chapter 107 of the Codified
Ordinances.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure.
necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health. safety. convenience and welfare of
the residents of the City for the rcason that it ts immediately necessary to use the new logo
and provided it receives the affirmative vote of three-fourths of the members elected or
appointed to Council. it shall take cffect and be in force immediately upon its passage and
approval by the Mayor.

PASSED: ) S )
Date Steve Michniak. President of Council
ATTEST: ) ]
Caroline L. Kremer. Clerk of Council
APPROVED:

Date Glenn M. Broska. Mayor

Prepared and approved as 1o {egal content by:

David 1. Nott. Law Director
Date Submitted 1o Mayor for Approval: ___ __ Returned:

Sponsored by: Parks and Recreation Department



—~—d
OdOmmHmmmr_lm

4O ALID dHL




